

209 CMR 50.00: PARITY WITH FEDERAL CREDIT UNIONS

Section

- 50.01: Purpose and Scope
- 50.02: Applicability and Relationship to Other State Law
- 50.03: Advisory Opinions
- 50.04: Definitions
- 50.05: Credit Union Eligibility to Conduct Activities
- 50.06: Application Process to Conduct Certain Activities
- 50.07: Incidental Powers
- ~~50.08: Expedited Review Process To Conduct Certain Activities~~
- 50.09: Notice Process to Conduct Certain Activities
- 50.10: Notice Process to Conduct Certain Activities Relative to CUSOs
- 50.11: Pilot Investment Program
- 50.12: Activities Requiring No Application or Notice
- 50.13: Regulatory Flexibility Program
- ~~50.14: Activities Requiring No Notice Or Application For Credit Unions That Have Previously Received Approval Pursuant To 209 CMR 50.00 et seq.~~
- 50.15: Additional Notice Authorities For Credit Unions That Have Not Previously Received Approval Pursuant To 209 CMR 50.00 et seq.

Deleted: 50.07: Incidental Powers

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 50.13: Regulatory Flexibility Program¶

50.01: Purpose and Scope

Deleted: 50.16: Notice Authority for Mortgage Loan Programs of Public Instrumentalities

The purpose of 209 CMR 50.00 et seq. is to specify authorized powers and activities of credit unions, pursuant to M.G.L. c. 171, §6A, and to establish procedures and requirements, applicable to credit unions seeking to exercise powers granted to or conduct activities authorized for federal credit unions under federal law, to the extent that such powers are not otherwise prohibited.

In determining whether or not to authorize any power or activity, the Commissioner shall also determine whether or not competition among credit unions will be unreasonably affected and whether public convenience and advantage will be promoted.

A credit union may, under M.G.L. c. 171, §6A and 209 CMR 50.00 et seq., exercise only those powers and engage in only those activities expressly authorized by the Commissioner as set forth in 209 CMR 50.00 et seq. Powers and activities not so authorized are prohibited.

50.02: Applicability and Relationship to Other State Law

- (1) 209 CMR 50.00 et seq. shall apply only to credit unions as defined by 209 CMR 50.04.
- (2) Any power authorized and exercised pursuant to 209 CMR 50.00 et seq. shall be independent from, and in addition to, any other powers granted to credit unions under applicable General Laws, or regulations promulgated thereunder. The express powers granted to credit unions under the General Laws are not limited or otherwise restricted by 209 CMR 50.00 et seq.

209 CMR: DIVISION OF BANKS AND LOAN AGENCIES

(3) Any lending power authorized and exercised pursuant to 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.* shall be subject to the limitations on total obligations to one borrower found in M.G.L. c. 171, § 58, unless otherwise specified herein.

50.03: Advisory Opinions

The Commissioner may issue from time to time advisory rulings, pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A, § 8, interpreting any provision of the regulations issued hereunder. Each regulation or officially published interpretation or guideline issued by the NCUA which interprets a provision of Federal law, as defined by 209 CMR 50.04, similar in substance to a provision of 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.*, shall, until rescinded by the NCUA, be deemed by the Commissioner to be an advisory ruling issued under M.G.L. c. 30A, § 8; provided, however, that the Commissioner, at any time, may reject such a regulation or officially published interpretation or guideline issued by the NCUA.

50.04: Definitions

As used in 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.*, the following words shall, unless the context otherwise requires, have the following meanings:

Adequately Capitalized. A credit union shall be deemed adequately capitalized if the credit union meets the definition of an adequately capitalized institution as defined under the prompt corrective action provisions of the Federal Credit Union Act, 12 U.S.C. § 1790d, and the regulations promulgated by the NCUA.

Automobile. The word automobile shall include a motorcycle and a truck.

50.04: continued

Credit union. A credit union chartered pursuant to M.G. L. c. 171 and subject to examination and supervision by the Commissioner under M.G. L. c. 167.

Commissioner. The commissioner of banks, including the Division of Banks.

CUSO. A credit union service organization authorized under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c).

Federal law. The Federal Credit Union Act, 12 U.S.C. § 1781 *et seq.*, and its implementing regulations; any other federal statute or regulation authorizing a federal credit union to engage in activities; and, any officially published interpretation or guideline issued thereunder, by the NCUA. An "officially published guideline" must be formally published and circulated by the NCUA or a commercial publisher and be generally available to the public. This phrase shall not include a private, unpublished staff attorney letter issued to a federal credit union.

Health savings account. The term health savings account shall include a tax-advantaged savings account a member may use to pay some medical expenses not covered by health insurance in accordance with 26 U.S.C. § 223 and any guidelines issued by the NCUA.

NCUA. The National Credit Union Administration.

Organization member. Any fraternal organization, voluntary association, partnership, limited partnership, corporation, limited liability company pursuant to relevant state law, or limited liability partnership pursuant to relevant state law, composed principally of individual members or stockholders who are themselves eligible to membership in a credit union or the Central Credit Union Fund, Inc. Said definition shall be effective as used in M.G.L. c. 171 and 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.*

Residential Mortgage Loan. The term residential mortgage loan shall mean a loan secured by a mortgage on a dwelling house with accommodations for four or less separate households occupied, or to be occupied, in whole or in part by the mortgagor or secured by a mortgage on an owner-occupied unit of a condominium. The term residential mortgage loan shall also mean a loan secured by a mortgage on a manufactured home that is permanently affixed to the land, qualifies as real property by being titled as real property under the laws of the state where it is located, and qualifies for a home mortgage interest deduction under the Internal Revenue Code.

Significantly undercapitalized. A credit union shall be deemed to be significantly undercapitalized if it:

- (a) has a net worth ratio of less than 4%; or
- (b) if:
 - 1. it has a net worth ratio of less than 5%;
 - 2. it fails to submit an acceptable net worth restoration plan within the time allowed; or materially fails to implement a net worth restoration plan; or
 - 3. it is not otherwise in compliance with 12 U.S.C. § 1790d.

Strong or Satisfactory Management. A credit union shall be deemed to have strong or satisfactory management if the credit union's management rating meets the definitions set forth in Division of Banks Regulatory Bulletin 1.1-101, Appendix A; NCUA Letter to Credit Unions No. 161; and NCUA Letter to Credit Unions No. 167.

Trustee or Custodial Services. Trustee or custodial services are services as defined at 12 CFR §721.3(1).

Well Capitalized. A credit union shall be deemed to be well capitalized if the credit union meets the definition of a well capitalized institution as defined under the prompt corrective action provisions of the Federal Credit Union Act, 12 U.S.C. § 1790d, and the regulations promulgated by the NCUA.

50.05: Credit Union Eligibility to Conduct Activities

(1) Financial and Managerial Requirements. Any credit union engaging in an activity pursuant to 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.* must possess the necessary financial and managerial resources to ensure such activity will not adversely affect the institution's safety and soundness.

(2) Policy and Procedure Requirements. Any credit union engaging in an activity pursuant to 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.* must have in place adequate policies and procedures governing the performance of such activity by the credit union and its employees, to minimize any credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal and reputational risks to the credit union.

(3) Satisfactory CRA Rating Requirement. Any credit union applying to engage in an activity pursuant to 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.* must have received at least a satisfactory CRA rating at the most recent examination conducted by the Commissioner pursuant to M. G. L. c.167, § 14.

(4) Review. Any activity undertaken by a credit union pursuant to 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.* shall remain subject to periodic review by the Commissioner. The Commissioner may modify, curtail, rescind or otherwise limit a credit union's authority to conduct any activity pursuant to 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.* through a formal or informal remedial action if a credit union ceases to meet any applicable requirements, based upon a report of examination conducted by the Commissioner or the NCUA, or based on other reliable information.

50.06: Application Process to Conduct Certain Activities

(1) General.

(a) A credit union that is adequately capitalized, and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized, may engage in any activity listed under 209 CMR 50.06(3) by submitting an application to, and receiving approval from the Commissioner before commencing the activity; provided, however, that such a credit union may also apply and receive approval from the Commissioner on a discretionary basis pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06, to engage in activities listed under 209 CMR 50.08(3), 209 CMR 50.09(3), and 209 CMR 50.12(2)(a).

(b) A credit union that is well capitalized, and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may apply and receive approval from the Commissioner before commencing the activity; provided, however, that such credit union may also apply and receive an expedited approval from the Commissioner to engage in an activity pursuant to 209 CMR 50.08(1).

(2) Application. The application must include a complete description of the credit union's proposed activity, the credit union's investment in such activity, a detailed business plan containing financial projections and assumptions, the written policies required by 209 CMR 50.05(2), as well as a representation and undertaking that the activity will be conducted in accordance with Massachusetts and Federal law. The application must also provide any other information the Commissioner may require.

(3) Activities subject to application and approval. A credit union may engage in the following activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(1):

(a) Temporary Branch Offices. A credit union may establish and operate a temporary branch office, to be open for less than a year, or on an intermittent basis at a designated site, subject to the investment limitations to purchase, hold and lease real estate suitable for the transaction of business, found at M.G.L. c. 171, § 75.

(b) Shared Branch Offices.

1. Authority. A credit union may establish and operate a branch office on a shared basis with one or more credit unions or federal credit unions subject to the approval of the commissioner under M.G.L. c. 171, § 8.

2. Credit Union Service Organizations. Shared branch offices may be established through a CUSO or by written agreement among two or more credit unions. Such CUSO shall comply with 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c).

3. Mandatory safeguards. Any such CUSO or agreement shall establish adequate safeguards relative to credit union liability for employee breaches of member confidentiality; loss against fraud or dishonesty; and any other risks associated with the operation of a shared branch office.

4. Maximum investment. Shared branch offices shall be subject to the investment limitations to purchase, hold and lease real estate suitable for the transaction of business, found at M.G.L. c. 171, § 75. In the event of a conflict between the investment limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, § 75 and the maximum investment limitations of 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c)1.a. and b. governing CUSOs, the former provision shall control.

(c) Investments in Credit Union Service Organizations. A credit union may, individually or with other credit unions or federal credit unions, invest in one or more CUSOs. Investments in or loans to CUSOs are permissible only if the CUSO primarily services credit unions, its membership, or the membership of credit unions contracting with the CUSO and shall otherwise conform to the customer base requirements of 12 CFR §712.3(b) and shall conduct activities and services related to the routine, daily operations of a credit union. Investments in or loans to federally-chartered CUSOs are permissible only if said federally-chartered CUSO limits itself at all times to those activities that can be conducted by a state-chartered CUSO pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c)2. Investment or lending pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c) shall be subject to the following conditions and limitations:

1. Maximum Investment.

a. Equity Investments. A credit union may invest in the shares, stocks or obligations of any other organization, providing services which are associated with the routine operations of credit unions, up to 1% of its total paid in and unimpaired capital and surplus, as of its last calendar year-end financial report, with the approval of the Commissioner.

b. Lending. A credit union's total loans to all CUSOs shall not exceed, in the aggregate, 1% of its total paid in and unimpaired capital and surplus, as of its last calendar year-end financial report. The lending authority under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c)1.b. is independent from the investment authority authorized under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c)1.a.

c. Investment Limitations. The investment authorized by 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c)1.a. shall not include the power to acquire control, directly or indirectly, of another financial institution or to invest in shares, stocks or obligations of a trade association, liquidity facility or any similar organization, corporation, or association, except as otherwise expressly authorized by 12 U.S.C. § 1781 *et seq.* or M.G.L. c. 171.

2. Permissible Activities. A credit union may invest in, or lend to a CUSO that engages in any of the following activities:

a. Checking and Currency Services.

- i. Check cashing;
- ii. Coin and currency services; and
- iii. Money order, savings bonds, travelers checks, and purchase and sale of U.S. Mint commemorative coins services.

b. Clerical, Professional and Management Services.

- i. Accounting services;
- ii. Courier services;
- iii. Credit analysis;
- iv. Facsimile transmissions and copying services;
- v. Internal audits for credit unions;
- vi. Locator services;
- vii. Management and personnel training and support;
- viii. Marketing services; and
- ix. Research services.

c. Consumer Mortgage Loan Origination.

d. Electronic Transaction Services.

- i. Automated teller machine (ATM) services;
- ii. Credit card and debit card services;
- iii. Data processing;
- iv. Electronic fund transfer (EFT) services;
- v. Electronic income tax filing;
- vi. Payment item processing;
- vii. Wire transfer services; and
- viii. Cyber financial services.

e. Financial Counseling Services.

- i. Developing and administering Individual Retirement Accounts (IRA), Keogh, deferred compensation, and other personnel benefit plans;
- ii. Estate planning;
- iii. Financial planning and counseling;
- iv. Income tax preparation;
- v. Investment counseling; and
- vi. Retirement counseling.

f. Leasing.

- i. Personal property; and
- ii. Real estate leasing of excess CUSO property.

209 CMR: DIVISION OF BANKS AND LOAN AGENCIES

- g. Loan Support Services.
 - i. Debt collection services;
 - ii. Loan processing, servicing, and sales; and
 - iii. Sale of repossessed collateral.
- h. Record Retention, Security and Disaster Recovery Services.
 - i. Alarm-monitoring and other security services;
 - ii. Disaster recovery services;
 - iii. Microfilm, microfiche, optical and electronic imaging, CD-ROM data storage and retrieval services;
 - iv. Provision of forms and supplies; and
 - v. Record retention and storage.

50.06: continued

- i. Student Loan Origination.
- j. CUSO Investments in Non-CUSO Service Providers. In connection with providing a permissible service, a CUSO may invest in a non-CUSO service provider. The amount of the CUSO's investment is limited to the amount necessary to participate in the service provider, or a greater amount if necessary to receive a reduced price for goods or services.
- k. Activities Related to Routine Daily Operations. A CUSO may engage in other activities if said activities are related to the routine daily operations of credit unions as permitted by the NCUA pursuant to 12 CFR §712.5 provided, however, that the Commissioner affirmatively deems such activity permissible by regulation or in writing.
- l. Trust and Trust-Related Services. Trust and trust-related services as set forth at 12 CFR 712.5(p): Acting as administrator for prepaid legal service plans; acting as trustee, guardian, conservator, estate administrator, or in any other fiduciary capacity; and trust services.
- m. Securities Brokerage Services.

3. Prohibited Activities. Notwithstanding 12 CFR § 712.5, a credit union may not invest in or lend to a CUSO that engages in the following activities or services, unless such activity or service is otherwise expressly authorized under M.G.L. c. 171:

a. "Fixed asset services" under 12 CFR § 712.5(g)(1) and (2);

~~b.~~ "Travel agency services" under 12 CFR § 712.5(o); and

~~c.~~ "Real estate brokerage" under 12 CFR § 712.5(q).

4. Corporate Requirements.

a. Corporate Structure. A credit union may invest in or lend to a CUSO structured as a business corporation, provided such entity is established and maintained under relevant federal or state law, or limited liability company or limited partnership, provided such entity is established and maintained under relevant state law. A credit union may also invest in a federally-chartered CUSO pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c) if said federally-chartered CUSO limits itself at all times to those activities that can be conducted by a state-chartered CUSO pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c)2.

b. Separate Corporate Identify. A CUSO shall maintain a separate and distinct corporate identity from the investing credit union. A credit union or CUSO that complies with the provisions of 12 CFR § 712.3, 12 CFR § 712.4, and 12 CFR § 712.8 shall be deemed to be in compliance with 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c)4.b.

5. Officials and Senior Management Employees. Officials, senior management employees and their immediate family members of a credit union that has outstanding loans or investments in a CUSO shall not receive any salary, commission, investment income, or other income or compensation from the CUSO either directly or indirectly, or from any person being serviced through the CUSO as set forth under 12 CFR § 712.8.

(d) Community Development Investments.

1. Investments in Community Development Credit Unions. A credit union may, individually or with other credit unions or federal credit unions, make deposits in, invest in, or lend to, a state or federally chartered credit union designated as a community development or low-income credit union located in the Commonwealth. A credit union's total deposits, investments and loans to all community development credit unions shall not exceed, in the aggregate, five percent of its total paid in and unimpaired capital and surplus, as of its last calendar year-end financial report.

2. Community Development Loan Pools. A credit union may, with other state or federally-chartered credit unions or banks, invest in, or lend to, a residential mortgage loan pool designed to promote affordable housing for low to moderate income persons residing in the Commonwealth for the purpose of meeting its obligations under the Massachusetts Community Reinvestment Act, M.G.L.c.167, § 14. Such investments and loans shall not exceed, in the aggregate, 5% of the credit union's total paid in and unimpaired capital and surplus, as of its last calendar year-end financial report.

(e) 15 Year Consumer Loans.

1. General. A credit union may make a personal loan to a member for a term of up to 15 years for any personal loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, § 59 or M.G.L. c. 171, §

Deleted: b. b. "Securities brokerage services" under 12 CFR § 712.5(l), excluding third party arrangements with independent vendors;

Deleted: c

Deleted: ;

Deleted: d

Deleted: 12

Formatted: Underline

Deleted: 12

209 CMR: DIVISION OF BANKS AND LOAN AGENCIES

64. Except as provided by 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e)2., any such personal loan shall be subject to the limitations, terms and conditions relative to collateral, loan to value, and variation in the rate of interest set forth in M.G.L. c. 171, § 59(1) through (3) or M.G.L. c. 171, § 64.

50.06: continued

2. Loan Policies. Any such loan shall be:
 - a. made in accordance with a detailed written loan policy approved by the credit union's directors;
 - b. evidenced by a note of the borrower; and
 - c. secured by a perfected pledge or security interest in the collateral, if made on a secured basis.
 3. Limitations. A credit union may make a personal loan authorized by 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e) up to any amount, provided such loan or advance would not cause the member to be indebted to the credit union in an aggregate amount exceeding 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired shares and surplus.
 4. Aggregate Outstanding Loan Balance Limitations. A credit union shall aggregate all personal loans made under M.G.L. c. 171, § 59 with loans made under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e) in calculating its maximum outstanding loan limitations under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e)4..
- (f) Automobile Financing.
1. General. Notwithstanding M.G.L. c. 171, § 59(3) and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e), a credit union may make an automobile loan, in an amount that may exceed the Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price consistent with safety and soundness limits, to a member for a term not to exceed 12 years or the useful life of the automobile, whichever is less. Indirect lending for automobiles may also be done in conjunction with the provisions of 209 CMR 50.06(3)(1). An application for direct automobile loans, in an amount that may exceed the Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price consistent with safety and soundness limits, to members for a term not to exceed that set forth in M.G.L. c. 171, § 59(3) shall be deemed approved by the Commissioner 30 days after the filing is received by the Commissioner, unless the Commissioner notifies the credit union prior to that date that the filing is not eligible for expedited review.
 2. Loan Policies. Any such loan shall be:
 - a. made in accordance with a detailed written loan policy approved by the credit union's directors;
 - b. evidenced by a note of the borrower; and
 - c. secured by a perfected pledge or security interest in the collateral.
 3. Limitations. No loan under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(f) shall cause the member to be indebted to the credit union in an aggregate amount exceeding 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired shares and surplus.
 4. Aggregate Outstanding Loan Balance Limitations. A credit union shall aggregate all loans made under M.G.L. c. 171, § 59(3) with loans made under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(f) in calculating its maximum outstanding loan limitations under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(f)4..
- (g) Lines of Credit and Credit Cards.
1. General. A credit union may grant an unsecured line of credit, including issuing a credit card, to a member subject to a detailed written loan policy required under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g)3. which has been approved and reviewed annually by the credit union's directors.
 2. Limitations. No loan or line of credit under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g)1. may be made

to any member if such loan or advance would cause the member to be indebted to the credit union in an aggregate amount exceeding 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired shares and surplus.

3. Loan Policies. Any such loan shall be:

- a. made in accordance with a detailed written loan policy approved by the credit union's directors; and
- b. evidenced by a note of the borrower. The credit union's loan policy and its contract documents shall establish the amortization and maturity requirements of such lines of credit.

4. Aggregate Outstanding Loan Balance Limitations. Credit unions making credit card loans under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g)1. shall be subject to the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, § 59A. A credit union shall aggregate all credit card loans made under M.G.L. c. 171, § 59A with loans made under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g)1. in calculating its maximum outstanding loan limitations under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g)4..

(h) Leasing Activities.

1. Authority. A credit union may engage in automobile and personal property lease financing transactions with its members on a net, full payout basis. Such automobile and personal leasing activities may be conducted on either a direct or indirect basis and on either an open or closed end basis.

50.06: continued

2. Conditions and limitations. All credit union leasing activities shall strictly conform to the conditions and limitations set forth in 12 CFR Part 714, Leasing. Those requirements include, but are not limited to, provisions governing maximum residual value; salvage values over leased property; and, contingent liability insurance policy endorsements for leasing. Credit union leasing activities shall remain subject to applicable usury limits under Massachusetts law.

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Deleted: NCUA Interpretive Ruling and Policy Statement 83-3, *FCU Leasing of Personal Property to Members*, (November 16, 1983)

(i) 20 Year Loans.

1. Home Improvement Loans. Notwithstanding the loan maturity requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 60, a credit union may make a loan to finance the repair, alteration or improvement of improved real estate that is occupied by a member, for a term of up to 20 years. Such home improvement loans may be up to any amount, provided such loan would not cause the member to be indebted to the credit union in an aggregate amount exceeding 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired shares and surplus.

2. Direct Mobile Home Loans. Notwithstanding the loan maturity requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 61, a credit union may make a loan to a member to finance a mobile home, as defined by M.G.L. c. 171, § 61, for a term of up to 20 years or the useful life of the mobile home, whichever is less. Such mobile home loan may be up to any amount, provided such loan or advance would not cause the member to be indebted to the credit union in an aggregate amount exceeding 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired shares and surplus.

Deleted:

Deleted:

3. Indirect Mobile Home Loans. Notwithstanding the loan maturity requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 61, a credit union may make an indirect loan to a member to finance a mobile home, as defined by M.G.L. c. 171, § 61, for a term of up to 20 years or the useful life of the mobile home, whichever is less. Such mobile home loan may be up to any amount, provided such loan or advance would not cause the member to be indebted to the credit union in an aggregate amount exceeding 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired shares and surplus.

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

4. Direct Boat, Camper, Trailer, or Recreational Vehicle Loans. Notwithstanding the loan maturity requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 62, a credit union may make a direct loan to a member to finance a boat, camper, trailer, or recreational vehicle for a term of up to 20 years or the useful life of the collateral, whichever is less. Such boat, camper, trailer, or recreational vehicle loan may be up to any amount, provided such loan or advance would not cause the member to be indebted to the credit union in an aggregate amount exceeding 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired shares and surplus.

Deleted: ¶
3.

Formatted: Underline

5. Indirect Boat, Camper, Trailer, or Recreational Vehicle Loans. Notwithstanding the loan maturity requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 62, a credit union may make an indirect loan to a member to finance a boat, camper, trailer, or recreational vehicle for a term of up to 20 years or the useful life of the collateral, whichever is less. Such boat, camper, trailer, or recreational vehicle loan may be up to any amount, provided such loan or advance would not cause the member to be indebted to the credit union in an aggregate amount exceeding 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired shares and surplus.

Deleted: 4

Formatted: Underline

6. Loan Policies. Any such loan made under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)1. through 5. shall be:

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 4

- a. made in accordance with a detailed written loan policy approved by the credit union's directors;
- b. evidenced by a note of the borrower; and
- c. secured by a perfected pledge or security interest in the collateral.

7. Aggregate Outstanding Loan Balance Limitations. Credit unions making home improvement, mobile home and boat, camper, trailer, and recreational vehicle loans under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)1. through 5. shall be subject to the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, § 60 through 62, respectively. A credit union shall aggregate all loans made under M.G.L. c. 171, § 60 through 62 with loans made under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)1. through 5. in calculating its maximum outstanding loan limitations under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)7.

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 6

(j) Residential Mortgages.

1. First Lien Residential Mortgages. Notwithstanding the requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 65, a credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans to members for a term of up to 40 years on any class or type of real estate loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, § 65.

The maximum loan amount per property and the total real estate borrowing limit per member shall be subject to approval by the Commissioner. Such residential real estate loans shall be subject to the conditions and limitations contained in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.

2. Closed-end Home Equity Mortgages. Notwithstanding the requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 65, a credit union may make a closed-end home equity residential mortgage loan secured by a non-purchase money first lien or a second or subsequent lien to a member for a term of up to 20 years on any class or type of real estate loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, § 65 or 209 CMR 50.06(3)(k)1.

The maximum loan amount per property and the total real estate borrowing limit per member shall be subject to approval by the Commissioner. Such residential real estate loans shall be subject to the conditions and limitations contained in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.

50.06: continued

3. Open-end Home Equity Mortgages. Notwithstanding the requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 65, a credit union may make an open-end home equity residential mortgage loan secured by a non-purchase money first lien or a second or subsequent lien to a member on any class or type of real estate loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, § 65 or 209 CMR 50.06(3)(k)1.

The maximum loan amount per property and the total real estate borrowing limit per member shall be subject to approval by the Commissioner. Such open-end home equity lines of credit shall be subject to the conditions and limitations contained in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.

4. Conditions and Limitations. All residential mortgage loans made under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1., 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)2., and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)3. shall be subject to the following minimum requirements:

a. Loan Policies. All such mortgage loans shall be made in accordance with detailed written loan policies, approved and annually reviewed by the credit union's board of directors. A credit union's residential mortgage lending activities shall be consistent with its formal asset liability management strategy.

b. Secondary Mortgage Market Standards. All such mortgage loans shall be underwritten to conform with secondary mortgage market standards in accordance with the requirements of Regulatory Bulletin Manual, 4.2-103, entitled *Residential Mortgage Loan Underwriting* (1998 ed.), and any amendments thereto.

c. Aggregate Outstanding Loan Balance Limitations. Credit unions making residential mortgage loans under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1., 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)2., and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)3. shall be subject to the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, § 65 governing real estate mortgage loans. A credit union shall aggregate all residential mortgage loans made under M.G.L. c. 171, § 65 with real estate mortgage loans made under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1., 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)2., and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)3. in calculating its maximum outstanding loan limitations under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.c.

(k) Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans.

1. 95% Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans, not exceeding 95% of the value of the real estate, to members subject to the terms and limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, § 65 paragraph 5 or pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j). The maximum loan amount per property and the total real estate borrowing limit per member shall be subject to approval by the Commissioner.

2. 97% Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans, not exceeding 97% of the value of the real estate, to members subject to the terms and limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, §65 paragraph 5 or pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4. to meet the distinct needs of low to moderate income members or as part of a first-time home buyer program. Any such residential mortgage loan which is not fully consistent with the requirements of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or other established secondary market

participant shall be calculated against the 10% of total real estate loans aggregate limit set out in Regulatory Bulletin 4.2-103. The maximum loan amount per property and the total real estate borrowing limit per member shall be subject to approval by the Commissioner.

3. 100% Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans, not exceeding 100% of the value of the real estate, to members subject to the terms and limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, §65 paragraph 5 or pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4. and shall obtain appropriate credit enhancement in the form of mortgage insurance or readily marketable collateral, provided, however, that such loans made pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(k)3. for an amount less than \$35,000.00 shall not require such credit enhancement. Any such residential mortgage loan which is not fully consistent with the requirements of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or other established secondary market participant shall be calculated against the 10% of total real estate loans aggregate limit set out in Regulatory Bulletin 4.2-103. The maximum loan amount per property and the total real estate borrowing limit per member shall be subject to approval by the Commissioner.
- (1) Purchase and Sale of Loan Portfolios.
 1. General. A credit union may purchase, sell or pledge any consumer or mortgage loan made under M.G.L. c. 171 or 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.*, (hereinafter "eligible obligation") subject to the requirements of 209 CMR 50.06(3)(l)2..
 2. Requirements. All loan purchases, sales or pledges under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(l)1. shall conform to the procedural and substantive requirements of 12 CFR § 701.23(b) governing the purchase of eligible obligations; 12 CFR § 701.23(c) governing the sale of eligible obligations; and 12 CFR § 701.23(d) governing the pledge of eligible obligations.

50.06: continued

(m) Consumer Loan Participations. A credit union may, by written agreement, make or invest in consumer loan participations with other credit unions, federal credit unions, federally-insured banks, any state or federal government agency and any subdivision thereof, or any credit union service organization meetings the requirements of 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c) subject to the terms and conditions applicable to federal credit unions found in 12 CFR § 701.22(b) through 12 CFR § 701.22(d). For the purposes of 209 CMR 50.06(3)(m), a consumer loan shall include any loan made under M.G.L. c. 171, §§ 59-59A and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e) through 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g). A credit union may invest in the aggregate up to 10% of its assets in consumer loan participation interests.

Deleted: or

(n) Non-Residential Real Estate Loan Participations. A credit union may, by written agreement, make or invest in non-residential real estate loan participations with other credit unions, federal credit unions, federally-insured banks, or any state or federal government agency and any subdivision thereof, subject to the terms and conditions applicable to federal credit unions found in 12 CFR §701.22(b) through 12 CFR § 701.22(d), or any credit union service organization meeting the requirements of 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c) that would be used to provide or support one of the following activities: (1) equity or debt financing for small businesses; (2) area revitalization or stabilization or (3) other activities, services or facilities that primarily promote public welfare for the purpose of meeting its obligations under the Massachusetts Community Reinvestment Act, M.G.L. c. 167, §14. For the purposes of 209 CMR 50.06(3)(n), a non-residential real estate loan participation shall include any loan made under M.G.L. c. 171 §65 and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j) and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(k). A credit union may invest in the aggregate up to 10% of its assets in non-residential real estate loan participation interests.

(o) Additional Non-Member Deposits. A credit union may accept deposits for any purpose from any financial institution insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the NCUA up to 5% of its existing deposits. After one year, for compelling and valid business reasons established to the satisfaction of the Commissioner, the credit union may apply pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(o) for authority to increase said deposits from 5% of its deposits up to a percentage not to exceed 20% of its deposits. Said deposits shall not exceed federal or excess share insurance limits and shall comply with the maximum deposit limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, § 30. Any acceptance of deposits made under 209 CMR 50.06(3)(o) shall be made in accordance with a detailed written policy approved and reviewed annually by the credit union's directors.

(p) Additional Powers.

Deleted: ¶

1. General. The authorities provided in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(p) are only for those activities listed. A credit union may engage in other activities if said activities are permitted and determined by the NCUA as incidental powers pursuant 12 CFR § 721 pursuant to regulations, guidelines or written opinions of the General Counsel of the NCUA only if the Commissioner affirmatively determines by regulation or in writing that the activity is reasonably related to an individual power set out in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(p).

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

2. Permissible Activities.

(a) Certain Correspondent Services. A credit union may perform internal audits.

(b) Certain Finders Activities. A credit union may make insurance, mutual fund, and annuities available to its members through outside vendors subject to the requirements of 12 CFR § 721 and Massachusetts law, and may provide additional finder activities.

(c) Loan-related Products. A credit union may provide the following loan-related products: debt cancellation agreements and debt suspension agreements.

(d) Trustee or Custodial Services through Outside Vendors. A credit union may offer trustee or custodial services as defined at 209 CMR 50.04 through outside vendors.

(e) Trustee or Custodial Services. A credit union may offer trustee or custodial services as defined at 209 CMR 50.04.

50.07: Incidental Powers

50.08: Expedited Review Process to Conduct Certain Activities

(1) General. A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activities listed in 209 CMR 50.08(3) by submitting an application to the Commissioner and receiving approval thereof. Such an application shall be deemed approved by the Commissioner 30 days after the filing is received by the Commissioner, unless the Commissioner notifies the credit union prior to that date that the filing is not eligible for expedited review.

(2) Application. The application must include a complete description of the credit union's proposed activity, the credit union's investment in such activity, a detailed business plan containing financial projections and assumptions, the written policies required by 209 CMR 50.05(2), as well as a representation and undertaking that the activity will be conducted in accordance with Massachusetts and Federal law. Any credit union granted an approval to conduct an activity pursuant to 209 CMR 50.08(1) is deemed to have agreed to conduct the activity in a manner consistent with applicable guidelines. The Commissioner may also impose additional conditions in connection with any approval granted under 209 CMR 50.08(1).

(3) Activities Eligible for Expedited Review. A credit union may exercise the following powers pursuant to 209 CMR 50.08(1):

(a) Temporary Branch Offices. A credit union which received, as a result of its most

Formatted: Indent: Left: 78 pt, Hanging: 17.75 pt

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Deleted: Incidental Powers

Deleted: (1) General. The authorities provided in 209 CMR 50.07 are only for those activities listed. A credit union may engage in other activities if said activities are permitted and determined by the NCUA as incidental powers pursuant to 12 CFR § 721 pursuant to regulations, guidelines or written opinions of the General Counsel of the NCUA only if the Commissioner affirmatively determines by regulation or in writing that the activity is reasonably related to an individual power set out in 209 CMR 50.07.¶

¶ (2) Application Process to Conduct Certain Activities.¶

(a) General. A credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in any activity listed under 209 CMR 50.07(5)(b)2., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(e)2., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(f)2., and 209 CMR 50.07(5)(g)1. by submitting an application to, and receiving approval from the Commissioner before commencing the activity.¶

(b) General Provisions for Trustee or Custodial Services. A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activity listed under 209 CMR 50.07(5)(k)2. and 209 CMR 50.07(5)(l)1. by submitting an application to, and receiving approval from the Commissioner before commencing the activity. . ¶

¶ (c) Application. The application must include a complete description of the credit union's proposed activity, the credit union's investment in such activity, a detailed business plan containing financial projections and assumpti... [1]

Deleted: (4) Activities Requiring No Application or Notice.¶

General. A credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activities listed in 209 CMR 50.07(5)(a)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(b)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(c)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(d)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(e)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(f)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(g)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(h)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(i)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(j)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(k)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(l)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(m)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(n)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(o)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(p)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(q)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(r)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(s)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(t)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(u)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(v)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(w)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(x)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(y)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(z)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(aa)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ab)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ac)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ad)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ae)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(af)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ag)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ah)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ai)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(aj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ak)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(al)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(am)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(an)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ao)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ap)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(aq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ar)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(as)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(at)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(au)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(av)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(aw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ax)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ay)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(az)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ba)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(be)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bi)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bo)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(br)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bs)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(by)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(bz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ca)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ce)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ch)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ci)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ck)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(co)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cs)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ct)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(cz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(da)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(db)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(de)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(df)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(di)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(do)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ds)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(du)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(dz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ea)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(eb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ec)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ed)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ee)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ef)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(eg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(eh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ei)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ej)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ek)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(el)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(em)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(en)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(eo)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ep)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(eq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(er)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(es)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(et)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(eu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ev)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ew)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ex)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ey)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ez)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fa)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fe)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ff)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fi)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fo)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fs)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ft)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(fz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ga)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ge)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gi)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(go)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gs)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(gz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ha)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(he)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hi)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ho)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hs)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ht)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(hz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ia)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ib)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ic)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(id)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ie)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(if)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ig)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ih)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ii)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ij)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ik)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(il)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(im)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(in)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(io)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ip)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(iq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ir)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(is)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(it)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(iu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(iv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(iw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ix)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(iy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(iz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ja)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(je)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ji)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jo)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(js)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ju)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(jz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ka)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ke)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ki)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(km)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ko)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ks)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ku)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ky)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(kz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(la)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ld)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(le)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(li)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ll)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ln)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lo)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ls)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ly)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(lz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ma)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(md)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(me)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mi)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ml)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mo)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ms)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(my)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(mz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(na)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ne)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ng)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ni)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(no)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(np)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ns)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ny)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(nz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oa)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ob)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(od)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oe)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(of)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(og)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oi)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ok)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ol)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(om)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(on)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oo)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(op)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(or)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(os)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ot)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ou)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ov)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ow)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ox)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(oz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pa)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pe)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ph)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pi)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(po)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ps)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(px)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(py)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(pz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qa)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qe)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qi)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ql)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qo)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qs)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(qz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ra)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(re)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ri)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ro)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rs)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ru)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ry)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(rz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sa)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sd)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(se)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sh)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(si)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(so)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ss)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(st)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(su)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sy)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(sz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ta)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tb)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tc)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(td)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(te)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tf)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tg)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(th)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ti)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tj)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tk)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tl)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tm)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tn)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(to)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tp)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tq)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tr)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ts)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tt)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tu)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tv)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tw)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tx)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ty)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(tz)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ua)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(ub)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(uc)1.,

recent examination by the Commissioner a "High Satisfactory" or an "Outstanding" CRA performance rating, may establish and operate a temporary branch office, to be open for less than a year, or on an intermittent basis at a designated site, subject to the investment limitations to purchase, hold and lease real estate suitable for the transaction of business, found at M.G.L. c. 171, § 75.

(b) Shared Branch Offices.

1. Authority. A credit union may establish and operate a branch office on a shared basis with one or more credit unions or federal credit unions subject to the approval of the commissioner under M.G.L. c. 171, § 8, provided all of the credit unions seeking to establish and operate such shared office received a "High Satisfactory" or an "Outstanding" CRA performance rating as a result of their most recent examinations by the Commissioner.

2. Credit Union Service Organizations. Shared branch offices may be established through a CUSO or by written agreement among two or more credit unions. Such CUSO shall comply with 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c).

3. Mandatory Safeguards. Any such CUSO or agreement shall establish adequate safeguards relative to credit union liability for employee breaches of member confidentiality; loss against fraud or dishonesty; and any other risks associated with the operation of a shared branch office.

4. Maximum Investment. Shared branch offices shall be subject to the investment limitations to purchase, hold and lease real estate suitable for the transaction of business, found at M.G.L. c. 171, § 75. In the event of a conflict between the investment limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, §75 and the maximum investment limitations of 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c) governing CUSOs, the former provision shall control.

50.09: Notice Process to Conduct Certain Activities

(1) General. A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is in troubled condition may engage in any activity listed under 209 CMR 50.09(3), by providing the Commissioner written notice within ten days after commencing the new activity.

(2) Notice. The written notice must include a complete description of the activity conducted, the credit union's investment in such activity, and a representation and undertaking that the activity will be conducted in accordance with Massachusetts and Federal law. Any credit union filing notice pursuant to 209 CMR 50.09(1) is deemed to have agreed to conduct the activity in a manner consistent with applicable guidelines.

(3) Activities Subject to Notice. A credit union may engage in the following activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.09(1):

(a) Interest Bearing Corporate Checking Accounts. To the extent permitted by federal law, a credit union may pay dividends on organization member share draft accounts and may permit such organization members to make withdrawals from such accounts by negotiable or transferable instruments or other orders for the purpose of making transfers to third parties; provided, however, that the entire beneficial interest in such account shall be held by an organization member.

(b) Treasury Tax and Loan Depositories. A credit union may establish Treasury Tax and Loan Remittance Accounts subject to the requirements and limitations of 12 U.S.C. § 1767(a) and 12 CFR § 701.37, its implementing regulations. Such authority shall not extend to acting as a fiscal agent or depository for the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions unless expressly authorized by Massachusetts law.

(c) Purchase and Sale of Loan Portfolios.

1. General. A credit union may purchase, sell or pledge any consumer or mortgage loan made under M.G.L. c. 171 or 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.*, (hereinafter "eligible obligation") subject to the requirements of 209 CMR 50.09(3)(c).

2. Requirements. All loan purchases, sales or pledges under 209 CMR 50.09(3)(c)1. shall conform to the procedural and substantive requirements of 12 CFR § 701.23(b) governing the purchase of eligible obligations; 12 CFR § 701.23(c) governing the sale of eligible obligations; and 12 CFR § 701.23(d) governing the pledge of eligible obligations.

(d) Leasing.

← - - - Formatted: Indent: Left: 72 pt

1. Authority. A credit union may engage in automobile and personal property lease financing transactions with its members on a net, full payout basis. Such automobile and personal leasing activities may be conducted on either a direct or indirect basis and on either an open or closed end basis.

2. Conditions and limitations. All credit union leasing activities shall strictly conform to the conditions and limitations set forth in 12 CFR Part 714, Leasing NCUA Interpretive Ruling and Policy Statement 83-3, FCU Leasing of Personal Property to Members, (November 16, 1983). Those requirements include, but are not limited to, provisions governing maximum residual value; salvage values over leased

property; and, contingent liability insurance policy endorsements for leasing. Credit union leasing activities shall remain subject to applicable usury limits under Massachusetts law.

(e) Additional Powers.

← - - - Formatted: Indent: Left: 71.5 pt

1. General. The authorities provided in 209 CMR 50.09(3)(e) are only for those activities listed. A credit union may engage in other activities if said activities are permitted and determined by the NCUA as incidental powers pursuant 12 CFR § 721 pursuant to regulations, guidelines or written opinions of the General Counsel of the NCUA only if the Commissioner affirmatively determines by regulation or in writing that the activity is reasonably related to an individual power set out in 209 CMR 50.09(3)(e).

← - - - Formatted: Indent: Left: 60 pt, Hanging: 17.75 pt, Tabs: 77.75 pt, Left

2. Notice Process for Certain Activities. A credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activity listed under 209 CMR 50.09(3)(e)4.a. by providing the Commissioner written notice within ten days after commencing the new activity.

3. General Provisions for Trustee or Custodial Services through Outside Vendors. A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activity listed under 209 CMR 50.09(3)(e)4.b. by providing the Commissioner written notice within ten days after commencing the new activity.

4. Permissible Activities.

← - - - Formatted: Indent: Left: 77 pt

← - - - Formatted: Indent: Left: 108 pt

a. Non-Member Monetary Instrument Services. As set forth in NCUA Opinion Letter 02-0250, a credit union, in order to provide monetary instrument services pursuant to 209 CMR 50.09(3)(e)4.a. may engage in the following: may establish a simplified membership program, with a non-dividend bearing membership account; with appropriate limitations may provide wire transfer services as a promotional activity pursuant to 209 CMR 50.12(4)(j)2.g. and 209 CMR 50.09(3)(e)4.a.; and in appropriate circumstances may provide wire transfer services as a charitable activity. A credit union may also offer check cashing and money transfer services to certain nonmembers within the credit union's field-of-membership including the following: the sale of negotiable checks, travelers checks, money orders and other similar money transfer instruments; the cashing of checks and money orders; and the receiving of international and domestic electronic fund transfers.

← - - - Formatted: Indent: Left: 108 pt

b. Trustee or Custodial Services through Outside Vendors. A well capitalized credit union may offer trustee or custodial services as defined at 209 CMR 50.04 through outside vendors.

← - - - Formatted: Indent: Left: 77.75 pt, Hanging: 18 pt

← - - - Formatted: Indent: Left: 108 pt

50.10: Notice Process to Conduct Certain Activities Relative to CUSOs

(1) General. A credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in any activity listed under 209 CMR 50.10(3) by providing the Commissioner written notice within ten days after commencing the new activity, provided, however, that the credit union has already received prior approval from the Commissioner to engage in other CUSO activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(c).

(2) Notice. The notice must include a complete description of the activity conducted, the credit union's investment in such activity, and a representation and undertaking that the activity will be conducted in accordance with Massachusetts and Federal law. Any credit union filing notice pursuant to 209 CMR 50.10(1) is deemed to have agreed to conduct the activity in a manner consistent with applicable guidelines.

(3) Activities Subject to Notice. A credit union may invest in, or lend to a CUSO that engages in any of the following activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.10(1):

(a) Checking and Currency Services.

1. Check cashing;
2. Coin and currency services; and
3. Money order, savings bonds, travelers checks, and purchase and sale of U.S. Mint commemorative coins services.

(b) Clerical, Professional and Management Services.

1. Accounting services;
2. Courier services;
3. Credit analysis;
4. Facsimile transmissions and copying services;

50.10: continued

5. Management and personnel training and support;
 6. Marketing services; and
 7. Research services.
- (c) Electronic Transaction Services.
1. Automated teller machine (ATM) services;
 2. Credit card and debit card services;
 3. Data processing;
 4. Electronic fund transfer (EFT) services;
 5. Electronic income tax filing;
 6. Payment item processing; and
 7. Wire transfer services.
- (d) Loan Support Services.
1. Loan processing, servicing, and sales; and
 2. Sale of repossessed collateral.
- (e) Record Retention, Security and Disaster Recovery Services.
1. Alarm-monitoring and other security services;
 2. Disaster recovery services;
 3. Microfilm, microfiche, optical and electronic imaging, CD-ROM data storage and retrieval services;
 4. Provision of forms and supplies; and
 5. Record retention and storage.
- (f) Student Loan Origination.
- (g) CUSO Investments in Non-CUSO Service Providers. In connection with providing a permissible service, a CUSO may invest in a non-CUSO service provider. The amount of the CUSO's investment is limited to the amount necessary to participate in the service provider, or a greater amount if necessary to receive a reduced price for goods or services.
- (h) Activities Related to Routine Daily Operations. A CUSO may engage in other activities if said activities are related to the routine daily operations of credit unions as permitted by the NCUA pursuant to 12 CFR §712.5 provided, however, that the Commissioner affirmatively deems such activity permissible by regulation or in writing.

50.11: Pilot Investment Program

A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may apply to the Commissioner to participate in a pilot investment program established by the Commissioner. Any such pilot program shall conform to the criteria set forth in 12 CFR § 703.140 or as amended. In approving a credit union's application for participation in a pilot program, the Commissioner may impose such terms and conditions as he deems necessary.

50.12: Activities Requiring No Application or Notice

209 CMR: DIVISION OF BANKS AND LOAN AGENCIES

(1) A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activities listed in 209 CMR 50.12(4)(a), 209 CMR 50.12(4)(b) and 209 CMR 50.12(4)(c), without filing an application or providing notice to the Commissioner; provided the activities continue to be deemed legally permissible by the Commissioner, and the activities are conducted in accordance with applicable Massachusetts or Federal law.

Deleted: 2

Deleted:

(2) A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized and that has strong or satisfactory management as defined at 209 CMR 50.04 may engage in the activities listed in 209 CMR 50.12(4)(d), 209 CMR 50.12(4)(e), 209 CMR 50.12(4)(f) and 209 CMR 50.12(4)(g) without filing an application or providing notice to the Commissioner; provided the activities continue to be deemed legally permissible by the Commissioner, and the activities are conducted in accordance with applicable Massachusetts or Federal law.

(3) A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activities listed in 209 CMR 50.12(4)(h), 209 CMR 50.12(4)(i) and 209 CMR 50.12(4)(j) without filing an application or providing notice to the Commissioner; provided the activities continue to be deemed legally permissible by the Commissioner, and the activities are conducted in accordance with applicable Massachusetts or Federal law.

(4) A credit union may engage in the following activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.12(1), 209 CMR 50.12(2) or 209 CMR 50.12(3):

Deleted: 2

(a) Deposits in Federally Insured Banks and Credit Unions.

1. Types of Deposits.

a. A credit union may invest in the deposits, including certificates of deposit, of federally insured banks located within or without the Commonwealth, provided such institutions are "well capitalized" under applicable federal share or deposit insurance laws and regulations.

b. A credit union may invest in the shares and deposits, including certificates of deposit, of federally insured credit unions located within or without the Commonwealth, provided such institutions are "well capitalized" under applicable federal share or deposit insurance laws and regulations.

c. Certificates of deposit authorized by 209 CMR 50.12(4)(a)1.a. and b. may exceed two years in maturity provided such investment is consistent with a credit union's formal asset liability management strategy.

Deleted: 2

2. Investment Policies. The investments authorized by 209 CMR 50.12(4)(a)1.a. through c. shall conform to written investment policies which meet the requirements of Regulatory Bulletin Manual, 2.2-101, entitled *Investment Policy Minimum Requirements* (1998 ed.), and any amendments thereto.

Deleted: 2

3. Cash on Hand Requirements. Deposits or certificates of deposit authorized by 209 CMR 50.12(4)(a)1.a. and b. shall not qualify towards the cash on hand requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 71, unless the deposit or certificate of deposit meets the maturity and eligible depository requirements of M.G.L. c. 171, § 71.

Deleted: 2

(b) Non-Member Deposits.

1. Corporate Credit Unions. A credit union may accept deposits from the Central Credit Union Fund, Inc., or a corporate credit union, as defined by M .G. L. c. 171, § 1, for liquidity purposes. Said deposits shall not exceed federal or excess share insurance limits and shall comply with the maximum deposit limitations of M.G. L. c. 171, § 30.

2. Credit Unions. A credit union may accept deposits for any purpose from another credit union or a federally chartered credit union having its main office in the Commonwealth. Said deposits shall not exceed federal or excess share insurance limits and shall comply with the maximum deposit limitations of M.G. L. c. 171, § 30.

(c) Additional Investment Authorities. A credit union may invest or engage in investment repurchase transactions; securities lending transactions; borrowing repurchase transactions, including reverse repurchase transactions; and federal funds from any financial institution insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the NCUA subject to the terms and conditions applicable to federal credit unions found in 12 CFR Part 703. Any investments made under 209 CMR 50.12(4)(c) shall be made in accordance with a detailed written policy approved and reviewed annually by the credit union's directors.

Formatted: No underline

Deleted: 2

Formatted: No underline

(d) Interest Bearing Corporate Checking Accounts. To the extent permitted by federal law, a credit union may pay dividends on organization member share draft accounts and may permit such organization members to make withdrawals from such accounts by negotiable or transferable instruments or other orders for the purpose of making transfers to third parties; provided, however, that the entire beneficial interest in such account shall be held by an organization member.

Deleted: ¶

¶

(e) Treasury Tax and Loan Depositories. A credit union may establish Treasury Tax and Loan Remittance Accounts subject to the requirements and limitations of 12 U.S.C. § 1767(a) and 12 CFR § 701.37, its implementing regulations. Such authority shall not extend to acting as a fiscal agent or depository for the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions unless expressly authorized by Massachusetts law.

(f) Investments in Land, Building, Improvements, and Equipment. A credit union may invest up to \$500,000 in land, building, improvements and equipment not to exceed \$500,000 for one parcel of real estate or purchase of equipment per transaction.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 77.75 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 65.5 pt

(g) Purchase of Loan Portfolios from Any Federally Insured Credit Union. Notwithstanding the general provisions in M.G.L. c. 171, a credit union meeting the eligibility requirements set forth in 209 CMR 50.12(2) may purchase any auto loan, credit card loan, student loan or mortgage loan from any federally insured credit union as long as the loans are loans that the purchasing credit union is empowered to grant. The credit union is authorized to keep these loans in its portfolio. If a credit union is purchasing the eligible obligations of a liquidating credit union, the loans purchased cannot exceed 5% of the unimpaired capital and surplus of the purchasing credit union.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 71.5 pt

(h) Purchase and Sale of Loan Portfolios.

1. General. A credit union may purchase, sell or pledge any consumer or mortgage loan made under M.G.L. c. 171 or 209 CMR 50.00 *et seq.*, (hereinafter "eligible obligation") subject to the requirements of 209 CMR 50.12(4)(h)2. ~~209 CMR 50.06(3)(1)2.~~
2. Requirements. All loan purchases, sales or pledges under 209 CMR 50.12(4)(h)2. ~~209 CMR 50.06(3)(1)1.~~ shall conform to the procedural and substantive requirements of 12 CFR § 701.23(b) governing the purchase of eligible obligations; 12 CFR § 701.23(c) governing the sale of eligible obligations; and 12 CFR § 701.23(d) governing the pledge of eligible obligations.

(i) Mortgage Loans Written in Accordance with Certain Mortgage Loan Programs of Public Instrumentalities. A credit union may make first and subsequent lien residential mortgage loans, other than reverse mortgage loans, to members if said loans are written in accordance with mortgage loan programs of public instrumentalities created by the commonwealth, its municipalities, or the federal government for the purpose of financing and expanding the supply of residential mortgages or affordable housing. Any such residential mortgage loan which is not fully consistent with the requirements of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or other established secondary market participant shall be calculated against the 10% of total real estate loans aggregate limit set out in Regulatory Bulletin 4.2-103, unless such loan is immediately assigned to the public instrumentality or other entity as part of the program. All activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.12(4)(i) shall be undertaken in a manner consistent with applicable guidelines. ~~The written notice must include a complete description of the loan program, including maximum loan amount and term, and a representation and undertaking that the activity will be conducted in accordance with Massachusetts and Federal law. Any credit union filing notice pursuant to 209 CMR 50.16(1) is deemed to have agreed to conduct the activity in a manner consistent with applicable guidelines.~~

(j) Additional Powers.

1. General. The authorities provided in 209 CMR 50.12(4)(j)2. are only for those

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 10 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 72 pt + Tab after: 90 pt + Indent at: 90 pt

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 108 pt + Tab after: 126 pt + Indent at: 126 pt

activities listed. A credit union may engage in other activities if said activities are permitted and determined by the NCUA as incidental powers pursuant 12 CFR § 721 pursuant to regulations, guidelines or written opinions of the General Counsel of the NCUA only if the Commissioner affirmatively determines by regulation or in writing that the activity is reasonably related to an individual power set out in 209 CMR 50.12(4)(j)2.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 72 pt

A credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activities listed in 209 CMR 50.12(4)(j)2. without filing an application or providing notice to the Commissioner; provided the activities continue to be deemed legally permissible by the Commissioner, and the activities are conducted in accordance with applicable Massachusetts or Federal law.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 60 pt, Hanging: 53.75 pt

2. Permissible Activities.

a. Certification Services. A credit union may provide the following certification services: notary services, signature guarantees, certification of electronic signatures, and share draft certifications.

b. Correspondent services. A credit union may provide the following correspondent services to other federally-insured credit unions: loan processing, loan servicing, member check cashing services, disbursing share withdrawals and loan proceeds, cashing and selling money orders, and automated teller machine deposit services.

c. Electronic Financial Services. A credit union may provide the following electronic financial services: automated teller machines, electronic fund transfers, online transaction processing through a web site, web site hosting services, account aggregation services, and Internet access services to perform or deliver products or services to members.

d. Excess Capacity.

1. Agreements Relative to Excess Capacity in Personnel. A credit union with excess capacity in its personnel may enter into an agreement to permit its employees to work elsewhere subject to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 171, § 19.

2. Sale or Lease of Excess Capacity in Data Processing Equipment or Services. A credit union may sell or lease the excess capacity in data processing equipment or services.

3. Sale or Lease of Excess Capacity in Facilities, Equipment or Office Space. A credit union may sell or lease the excess capacity in facilities, equipment or office space.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 14.25 pt, Hanging: 62.75 pt, Tabs: Not at 95.75 pt

e. Financial Counseling. A credit union may provide advice, guidance or services to members to promote thrift or to otherwise assist members on financial matters and may provide the following financial counseling services if said services are provided by the credit union for a fee: income tax preparation service; electronic tax filing for members;

counseling regarding estate and retirement planning; investment counseling; and debt and budget counseling.

f. Finder Activities. A credit union may provide the following finder activities by offering products and services to members through outside vendors: through the sale of advertising space on the credit union's web site and account statements and receipts; and selling statistical or consumer financial information to outside vendors to facilitate the sale of their products to the members of the credit union.

g. Marketing Activities. A credit union may engage in the following marketing activities: advertising and other promotional activities such as raffles, membership referral drives, and the purchase or use of advertising.

h. Member Monetary Instrument Services. A credit union may provide the following monetary instrument services: sale and exchange of foreign currency and U.S. commemorative coins; use of a credit union's accounts in foreign financial institutions to facilitate members' transfer and negotiation of checks denominated in foreign currency; and engaging in monetary transfer services for members, provided, however, that under no circumstances can a credit union engage in foreign exchange activities for speculative purpose for its own account.

i. Stored Value Products. A credit union may provide the following stored value products: stored value cards, public transportation tickets, event and attraction tickets, gift certificates, prepaid phone cards, postage stamps, and electronic benefits transfer script, and similar media.

j. Health Savings Accounts. A credit union may offer health savings accounts, as defined at 209 CMR 50.04.

50.13: Regulatory Flexibility Program

50.14: Activities Requiring No Notice Or Application For Credit Unions That Have Previously Received Approval Pursuant To 209 CMR 50.00 et seq.

(1) General. A credit union that has previously received approval to engage in activities set forth in 209 CMR 50.06, 209 CMR 50.07, or 209 CMR 50.11 and that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Deleted: Regulatory Flexibility Program.

Deleted: <#>A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized and that has strong or satisfactory management as defined at 209 CMR 50.04 may engage in the activities listed in 209 CMR 50.13 without filing an application or providing notice to the Commissioner; provided the activities continue to be deemed legally permissible by the Commissioner, and the activities are conducted in accordance with applicable Massachusetts or Federal law. ¶

<#>A credit union may engage in the following activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.13(1): ¶

<#>Investments in Land, Building, Improvements, and Equipment. A credit union may invest up to \$500,000 in land, building, improvements and equipment not to exceed \$500,000 for one parcel of real estate or purchase of equipment per transaction. ¶

<#>Purchase of Loan Portfolios. Notwithstanding the general provisions in M.G.L. c. 171, a credit union meeting the eligibility requirements set forth in 209 CMR 50.13(1) may purchase any auto loan, credit card loan, student loan or mortgage loan from any federally insured credit union as long as the loans are loans that the purchasing credit union is empowered to grant. The credit union is authorized to keep these loans in its portfolio. If a credit union is purchasing the eligible obligations of a liquidating credit union, the loans purchased cannot exceed 5% of the unimpaired capital and surplus of the purchasing credit union. ¶

(c) Interest Bearing Corporate Checking Accounts. To the extent permitted by federal law, a credit union may pay dividends on organization member share draft accounts and may permit such organization members to make withdrawals from such accounts by negotiable or transferable instruments or other orders for the purpose of making transfers to third parties; provided, however, that the entire beneficial interest in such account shall be held by an organization member. ¶

(d) Treasury Tax and Loan Depositories. A credit union may establish Treasury Tax and Loan Remittance Accounts subject to the requirements and limitations of 12 U.S.C. § 1767(a) and 12 CFR § 701.37, its implementing regulations. Such authority shall not extend to acting as a fiscal agent or depository for the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions unless expressly authorized by Massachusetts law. ¶

209 CMR: DIVISION OF BANKS AND LOAN AGENCIES

capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized; that has strong or satisfactory management as defined at 209 CMR 50.04; and meets all requirements set forth in 209 CMR 50.05 may engage in any activity listed under 209 CMR 50.14(2) without filing an application or providing notice to the Commissioner; provided the activities continue to be deemed legally permissible by the Commissioner, and the activities are conducted in accordance with applicable Massachusetts and Federal Law. The following activities will require no application or notice notwithstanding internal cross-references within 209 CMR 50.00.

- (2) Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. A credit union may engage in the following activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.14(1):
- (a) Consumer Loans. A credit union may make a personal loan not to exceed \$30,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, to a member for a term of up to 12 years for any personal loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, §59 or M.G.L. c. 171, §64. Any such personal loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member and aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e), and shall be subject to all other conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e).
- (b) Direct Automobile Financing. A credit union may make a direct automobile loan to a member in an amount that may exceed the Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price consistent with safety and soundness limits not to exceed \$75,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a term not to exceed 12 years or the useful life of the automobile, whichever is less. Any such direct automobile loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member and aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(f), and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(f).
- (c) Indirect Automobile Financing. A credit union may make an indirect automobile loan to a member in an amount that may exceed the Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price consistent with safety and soundness limits not to exceed \$75,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a term not to exceed 12 years or the useful life of the automobile, whichever is less. Indirect lending for automobiles shall be deemed to be done in conjunction with the provisions of 209 CMR 50.06(3)(l). Any such indirect automobile loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member and aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(f), and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(f).
- (d) Lines of Credit and Credit Cards. A credit union may grant an unsecured line of credit, including issuing a credit card, up to \$25,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, to a member. Any such unsecured line of credit and credit card shall be included in the loan limitations per member and aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g), and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g).
- (e) Home Improvement Loans. A credit union may make a loan up to \$125,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, to finance the repair, alteration or improvement of improved real estate that is occupied by a member, for a term of up to 20

Deleted: 6

209 CMR: DIVISION OF BANKS AND LOAN AGENCIES

years. Any such home improvement loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)1. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)7., and shall subject be to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)1. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)6..

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 5

- (f) Direct Mobile Home Loans. A credit union may make a loan up to \$125,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a mobile home, as defined by M.G.L. c. 171, §61, for a term of up to 20 years or the useful life of the mobile home, whichever is less. Any such mobile home loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)2. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)7., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)2. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)6..

Deleted:

Deleted:

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 5

- (g) Direct Boat, Camper, Trailer, or Recreational Vehicle Loans. A credit union may make a direct loan to a member to finance a boat, camper, trailer or recreational vehicle not to exceed \$100,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a term up to 20 years. Any such direct boat, camper, trailer or recreational vehicle loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)4. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)7., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)4. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)6..

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 5

- (h) First Lien Residential Mortgages. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans to members not to exceed \$900,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a term up to 40 years on any class or type of real estate loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, §65 or 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. Any such first lien residential mortgage loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.c., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4..

Deleted: 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and

Deleted: c

- (i) Closed-end Home Equity Mortgages. A credit union may make a closed-end home equity residential mortgage loan secured by a non-purchase money first lien or a second or subsequent lien to a member up to \$250,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a term of up to 20 years on any class or type of real estate loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, §65 or 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)2. Any such second lien or non-purchase money first lien closed-end home equity residential mortgage loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)2. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.c., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4..

Deleted: 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)2. and

Deleted: c.

- (j) Open-end Home Equity Mortgages. A credit union may make an open-end home equity residential mortgage loan secured by a non-purchase money first lien or a second or subsequent lien to a member up to \$250,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, on any class or type of real estate loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, §65 or 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)3. Any such second lien or non-purchase money first lien open-end

209 CMR: DIVISION OF BANKS AND LOAN AGENCIES

home equity residential mortgage loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)3. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.c., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.

Deleted: 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)3. and

Deleted: c.

- (k) 95% Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans, not exceeding 95% of the real estate, to members subject to the terms and limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, §65 paragraph 5 or pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(k)1. The authority granted herein shall be subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.14(3)(h), 209 CMR 50.14(3)(i), and 209 CMR 50.14(3)(j), and subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(k)1.

(l) 97% Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans, not exceeding 97% of the value of the real estate, to members subject to the terms and limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, §65 paragraph 5 or pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4. to meet the distinct needs of low to moderate income members or as part of a first-time home buyer program. Any such residential mortgage loan which is not fully consistent with the requirements of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or other established secondary market participant shall be calculated against the 10% of total real estate loans aggregate limit set out in Regulatory Bulletin 4.2-103.

(m) 100% Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans, not exceeding 100% of the value of the real estate, to members subject to the terms and limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, §65 paragraph 5 or pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4. and shall obtain appropriate credit enhancement in the form of mortgage insurance or readily marketable collateral, provided, however, that such loans made pursuant to 209 CMR 50.14(2)(m) for an amount less than \$35,000.00 shall not require such credit enhancement. Any such residential mortgage loan which is not fully consistent with the requirements of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or other established secondary market participant shall be calculated against the 10% of total real estate loans aggregate limit set out in Regulatory Bulletin 4.2-103.

50.15: Additional Notice Authorities For Credit Unions That Have Not Previously Received Approval Pursuant To 209 CMR 50.00 et seq.

- (1) General. A credit union that has not previously received approval to engage in activities set forth in 209 CMR 50.06, 209 CMR 50.07, or 209 CMR 50.11 and that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized; that has strong or satisfactory management as defined at 209 CMR 50.04; and meets all requirements set forth in 209 CMR 50.05 may engage in any activity listed under 209 CMR 50.15(3) by providing the Commissioner written notice within ten days after commencing the new activity. The following activities will require no application or notice notwithstanding

Formatted: Indent: Left: -17 pt,
Tabs: Not at 54 pt

internal cross-references within 209 CMR 50.00.

(2) Notice. The written notice must include a complete description of the activity conducted, the credit union's investment in such activity, and a representation and undertaking that the activity will be conducted in accordance with Massachusetts and Federal law. Any credit union filing notice pursuant to 209 CMR 50.15(1) is deemed to have agreed to conduct the activity in a manner consistent with applicable guidelines.

Deleted: 1

(3) Activities Subject to Notice. A credit union may engage in the following activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.15(1):

(a) Consumer Loans. A credit union may make a personal loan not to exceed \$20,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, to a member for a term of up to 12 years for any personal loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, §59 or M.G.L. c. 171, §64. Any such personal loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member and aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e), and shall be subject to all other conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(e).

Deleted: 6

(b) Direct Automobile Financing. A credit union may make a direct automobile loan to a member in an amount that may exceed the Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price consistent with safety and soundness limits not to exceed \$60,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a term not to exceed 12 years or the useful life of the automobile, whichever is less. Any such direct automobile loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member and aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(f), and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(f).

(c) Lines of Credit and Credit Cards. A credit union may grant an unsecured line of credit, including issuing a credit card, up to \$20,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, to a member. Any such unsecured line of credit and credit card shall be included in the loan limitations per member and aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g), and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(g).

(d) Home Improvement Loans. A credit union may make a loan up to \$75,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, to finance the repair, alteration or improvement of improved real estate that is occupied by a member, for a term of up to 20 years. Any such home improvement loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)1. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)7., and shall subject be to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)1. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)6..

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 5

(e) Direct Mobile Home Loans. A credit union may make a loan up to \$75,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a mobile home, as defined by M.G.L. c. 171, §61, for a term of up to 20 years or the useful life of the mobile home, whichever is less. Any such mobile home loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)2. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations

209 CMR: DIVISION OF BANKS AND LOAN AGENCIES

set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)7., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)2. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)6.

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 5.

- (f) Direct Boat, Camper, Trailer, and Recreational Vehicle Loans. A credit union may make a direct loan to a member to finance a boat, camper, trailer, or recreational vehicle not to exceed \$75,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a term up to 20 years. Any such boat, camper, trailer, or recreational vehicle loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)4. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)7., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)4. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(i)6..

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 5

- (g) First Lien Residential Mortgages. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans to members not to exceed \$500,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a term up to 40 years on any class or type of real estate loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, §65 or 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. Any such first lien residential mortgage loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.c., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.

Deleted: 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and

Deleted: c.

- (h) Closed-end Home Equity Mortgages. A credit union may make a closed-end home equity residential mortgage loan secured by a non-purchase money first lien or a second or subsequent lien to a member up to \$125,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, for a term of up to 20 years on any class or type of real estate loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, §65 or 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)2. Any such second lien or non-purchase money first lien closed-end home equity residential mortgage loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)2. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.c., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.

Deleted: 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)2. and

Deleted: c.

- (i) Open-end Home Equity Mortgages. A credit union may make an open-end home equity residential mortgage loan secured by a non-purchase money first lien or a second or subsequent lien to a member up to \$125,000 or 10% of the credit union's total unimpaired capital and surplus, whichever is greater, on any class or type of real estate loan authorized by M.G.L. c. 171, §65 or 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)3. Any such second lien or non-purchase money first lien open-end home equity residential mortgage loan shall be included in the loan limitations per member set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)3. and the aggregate outstanding loan balance limitations set forth at 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.c., and shall be subject to all conditions set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4.

Deleted: 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)3. and

Deleted: c.

- (j) 95% Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans not exceeding 95% of the real estate, to members subject to the terms and limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, §65 paragraph 5 or pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(k)1. The authority granted herein is subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.15(3)(g), 209 CMR 50.15(3)(h), and 209 CMR 50.15(3)(i), and subject to the conditions and

limitations set forth in 209 CMR 50.06(3)(k)1.

(k) 97% Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans, not exceeding 97% of the value of the real estate, to members subject to the terms and limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, §65 paragraph 5 or pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4. to meet the distinct needs of low to moderate income members or as part of a first-time home buyer program. Any such residential mortgage loan which is not fully consistent with the requirements of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or other established secondary market participant shall be calculated against the 10% of total real estate loans aggregate limit set out in Regulatory Bulletin 4.2-103.

(l) 100% Loan to Value Residential Mortgage Loans. A credit union may make first lien residential mortgage loans, not exceeding 100% of the value of the real estate, to members subject to the terms and limitations of M.G.L. c. 171, §65 paragraph 5 or pursuant to 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)1. and 209 CMR 50.06(3)(j)4. and shall obtain appropriate credit enhancement in the form of mortgage insurance or readily marketable collateral, provided, however, that such loans made pursuant to 209 CMR 50.15(3)(l) ~~209 CMR 50.06(3)(k)3.~~ for an amount less than \$35,000.00 shall not require such credit enhancement. Any such residential mortgage loan which is not fully consistent with the requirements of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or other established secondary market participant shall be calculated against the 10% of total real estate loans aggregate limit set out in Regulatory Bulletin 4.2-103.

Deleted: ~~<#>Notice Authority for Mortgage Loan Programs of Public Instrumentalities¶~~

~~¶
(1) General. A credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in any activity listed under 209 CMR 50.16(3) by providing the Commissioner written notice within ten days after commencing the new activity. ¶~~

~~¶
<#>The written notice must include a complete description of the loan program, including maximum loan amount and term, and a representation and undertaking that the activity will be conducted in accordance with Massachusetts and Federal law. Any credit union filing notice pursuant to 209 CMR 50.16(1) is deemed to have agreed to conduct the activity in a manner consistent with applicable guidelines. ¶~~

~~¶
<#>Activities Subject to Notice. A credit union may engage in the following activities pursuant to 209 CMR 50.16(1):¶~~

~~¶
(a) Mortgage Loans Written in Accordance with Certain Mortgage Loan Programs of Public Instrumentalities. A credit union may make first and subsequent lien residential mortgage loans, other than reverse mortgage loans, to members if said loans are written in accordance with mortgage loan programs of public instrumentalities created by the commonwealth, its municipalities, or the federal government for the purpose of financing and expanding the supply of residential mortgages or affordable housing. Any such residential mortgage loan which is not fully consistent with the requirements of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or other established secondary market participant shall be calculated against the 10% of total real estate loans aggregate limit set out in Regulatory Bulletin 4.2-103, unless such loan is immediately assigned to the public instrumentality or other entity as part of the program. ¶~~

~~¶
¶
¶~~

REGULATORY AUTHORITY

209 CMR 50.00: M.G.L. c. 171, § 6A.

(1) General. The authorities provided in 209 CMR 50.07 are only for those activities listed. A credit union may engage in other activities if said activities are permitted and determined by the NCUA as incidental powers pursuant 12 CFR § 721 pursuant to regulations, guidelines or written opinions of the General Counsel of the NCUA only if the Commissioner affirmatively determines by regulation or in writing that the activity is reasonably related to an individual power set out in 209 CMR 50.07.

(2) Application Process to Conduct Certain Activities.

(a) General. A credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in any activity listed under 209 CMR 50.07(5)(b)2., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(e)2., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(f)2., and 209 CMR 50.07(5)(g)1. by submitting an application to, and receiving approval from the Commissioner before commencing the activity.

(b) General Provisions for Trustee or Custodial Services. A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activity listed under 209 CMR 50.07(5)(k)2. and 209 CMR 50.07(5)(l)1. by submitting an application to, and receiving approval from the Commissioner before commencing the activity.

(c) Application. The application must include a complete description of the credit union's proposed activity, the credit union's investment in such activity, a detailed business plan containing financial projections and assumptions, the written policies required by 209 CMR 50.05(2), as well as a representation and undertaking that the activity will be conducted in accordance with Massachusetts and Federal law. The application must also provide any other information the Commissioner may require.

(3) Notice Process to Conduct Certain Activities.

(a) General. A credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in any activity listed under 209 CMR 50.07(5)(d)2. and 209 CMR 50.07(5)(i)1. by providing the Commissioner written notice within ten days after commencing the new activity.

(b) General Provisions for Trustee or Custodial Services through Outside Vendors. A credit union that is well capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activity listed under 209 CMR 50.07(5)(k)1. by providing the Commissioner written notice within ten days after commencing the new activity.

(c) Notice. The written notice must include a complete description of the activity conducted, the credit union's investment in such activity, and a representation and undertaking that the activity will be conducted in accordance with Massachusetts and Federal law. Any credit union filing notice pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(3)(a) or 209 CMR 50.07(3)(b) is deemed to have agreed to conduct the activity in a manner consistent with applicable guidelines.

(4) Activities Requiring No Application or Notice.

General. A credit union that is adequately capitalized and has not been notified that it is significantly undercapitalized or a credit union that is well capitalized and has not been

notified that it is significantly undercapitalized may engage in the activities listed in 209 CMR 50.07(5)(a)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(b)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(c)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(d)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(e)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(f)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(h)1., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(i)2., 209 CMR 50.07(5)(j), and 209 CMR 50.07(5)(m) without filing an application or providing notice to the Commissioner; provided the activities continue to be deemed legally permissible by the Commissioner, and the activities are conducted in accordance with applicable Massachusetts or Federal law.

(5) Permissible Activities.

(a) Certification Services.

1. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4), may provide the following certification services: notary services, signature guarantees, certification of electronic signatures, and share draft certifications.

50.07: continued

(b) Correspondent services.

1. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4), may provide the following correspondent services: loan processing, loan servicing, member check cashing services, disbursing share withdrawals and loan proceeds, cashing and selling money orders, and automated teller machine deposit services.

2. Activities Requiring Application. A credit union, with approval from the Commissioner pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(2), may perform internal audits.

(c) Electronic Financial Services.

1. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4), may provide the following electronic financial services: automated teller machines, electronic fund transfers, online transaction processing through a web site, web site hosting services, account aggregation services, and Internet access services to perform or deliver products or services to members.

(d) Excess Capacity.

1. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice.

a. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4), with excess capacity in its personnel may enter into an agreement to permit its employees to work elsewhere subject to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 171, § 19.

b. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4), may sell or lease the excess capacity in data processing equipment or services.

2. Activities Requiring Notice. A credit union, by providing notice pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(3)(a), may sell or lease the excess capacity in facilities, equipment or office space.

(e) Financial Counseling.

1. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4) may provide advice, guidance or services to members to promote thrift or to otherwise assist members on financial matters.

2. Activities Requiring Application. A credit union, with approval from the Commissioner subject to 209 CMR 50.07(2)(a), may provide the following financial counseling services if said services are provided by the credit union for a fee: income tax preparation service; electronic tax filing for members; counseling regarding estate and retirement planning; investment counseling; and debt and budget counseling.

(f) Finder Activities.

1. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4)(a), may provide the following finder activities by offering products and services to members through outside vendors: through the sale of advertising space on the credit union's web site and account statements and receipts; and selling statistical or consumer financial information to outside vendors to facilitate the sale of their products to the members of the credit union..

2. Activities Requiring Application. A credit union, with approval from the Commissioner pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(2)(a), may make insurance, mutual fund, and annuities available to its members through outside vendors subject to the requirements of 12 CFR § 721 and Massachusetts law, and may provide additional finder activities.

(g) Loan-related Products.

1. Activities Requiring Application. A credit union, with approval from the Commissioner pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(2)(a), may provide the following loan-related products: debt cancellation agreements and debt suspension agreements.

(h) Marketing Activities.

1. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4), may engage in the following marketing activities: advertising and other promotional activities such as raffles, membership referral drives, and the purchase or use of advertising.

(i) Monetary Instrument Services. 1. Activities Requiring Notice. Non-Member Monetary Instrument Services. As set forth in NCUA Opinion Letter 02-0250, a credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(3)(a), in order to provide monetary instrument services pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(5)(i)1. may engage in the following: may establish a simplified membership program, with a non-dividend bearing membership account; with appropriate limitations may provide wire transfer services as a promotional activity pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(5)(h) and 209 CMR 50.07(5)(i)1.; and in appropriate circumstances may provide wire transfer services as a charitable activity.

2. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. Member Monetary Instrument Services. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4), may provide the following monetary instrument services: sale and exchange of foreign currency and U.S. commemorative coins; use of a credit union's accounts in foreign financial institutions to facilitate members' transfer and negotiation of checks denominated in foreign currency; and engaging in monetary

50.07: continued

transfer services for members, provided, however, that under no circumstances can a credit union engage in foreign exchange activities for speculative purpose for its own account.

(j) Stored Value Products. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4), may provide the following stored value products: stored value cards, public transportation tickets, event and attraction tickets, gift certificates, prepaid phone cards, postage stamps, and electronic benefits transfer script, and similar media.

(k) Trustee or Custodial Services through Outside Vendors.

Activities Requiring Notice. A well capitalized credit union, by providing notice pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(3)(b), may offer trustee or custodial services as defined at 209 CMR 50.04 through outside vendors.

Activities Requiring Application. An adequately capitalized credit union, with approval from the Commissioner pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(2)(b), may offer trustee or custodial services as defined at 209 CMR 50.04 through outside vendors.

(l) Trustee or Custodial Services.

Activities Requiring Application. A well capitalized credit union or an adequately capitalized credit union, with approval from the Commissioner pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(2)(b), may offer trustee or custodial services as defined at 209 CMR 50.04.

(m) Health Savings Accounts. Activities Requiring No Application or Notice. A credit union, pursuant to 209 CMR 50.07(4), may offer health savings accounts, as defined at 209 CMR 50.04.